PUBLIC HEARING

FRANCHISE AND CONCESSION REVIEW COMMITTEE

MONDAY, JUNE 2, 2008 @ 2:30 P.M.

22 READE STREET, MANHATTAN

NOTE: INDIVIDUALS REQUESTING SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETERS SHOULD CONTACT THE
MAYOR’S OFFICE OF CONTRACT SERVICES, 253 BROADWAY, 9TH FL., NEW YORK,
NEW YORK, N.Y. 10007 (212) 788-7490, NO LATER THAN SEVEN (7) BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR
TO THE PUBLIC HEARING. TDD USERS SHOULD CALL VERIZON RELAY SERVICE.

Franchise and Concession Review Committee Public Hearing —
Monday, June 2, 2008 @ 2:30PM

NEW YORK CITY DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY &
TELECOMMUNICATIONS

No. 1: IN THE MATTER of a proposed change of control of NEON Transcom, Inc. and the

amendment to Appendix G (“Ownership Structure”) of the existing Franchise Agreement to reflect the
aforementioned change.

NEW YORK CITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ON BEHALF OF
NEW YORK CITY DEPARTMENT OF SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES

No. 2: IN THE MATTER of the intent to award a Concession Agreement to FirstFlight, Inc. for
operation of the Downtown Manhattan Heliport for a term of ten (10) years. The concessionaire will pay the
City compensation consisting of the greater of a Minimum Annual Guarantee (“MAG?”) or the Percentage of
Gross Receipts (“PGR”) for each year of the agreement.

NEW YORK CITY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

No. 3: IN THE MATTER of the intent to seek Franchise and Concession Review Committee
approval to extend the operating authority of Private Transportation Corporation to provide bus service in the
Borough of Brooklyn between Williamsburg and Borough Park. The term of the extension is from July 1,
2008 until June 30, 2009.

NEW YORK CITY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

No. 4: IN THE MATTER of the intent to seek Franchise and Concession Review Committee
approval to extend the operating authority of Private One of New York, LLC for the maintenance and
operation of omnibuses between the Borough of Manhattan and La Guardia and John F. Kennedy Airports in
the Borough of Queens and between those airports. The term of the extension is from July 1, 2008 until June
30, 20009.




NEW YORK CITY MAYOR'’S OFFICE OF CONTRACT SERVICES

No. 5: IN THE MATTER of a Public Hearing on Agency Concession Plans pursuant to Section 1-10
of the Concession Rules of the City of New York. At this hearing, the FCRC shall further solicit comments
about the provisions of the Concession Rules from the vendor community, civic groups and the public at large.
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the respected people of the City of New York will
do your due diligence. We believe that the due
diligence here will show, without any question,
that the most qualified, and the company that gave
the most lucrative proposal to the New York City
Economic Development Corporation, 1is Linden
Municipal Airport Corporation.

In fact, we believe that the vendors and
the staff at the Downtown Heliport will verify and
substantiate that Linden should have been the
successful applicant. We contend and we expect
that your due diligence will find that referring to
a settlement agreement with the Hudson River Park
Trust 1is not an indication as to why FirstFlight
should be awarded a concession in the Downtown
Heliport.

That settlement agreement, and this 1is
a public record. I'm sure all of you, being
trusted public officials and representatives, will
do your own due diligence.

That settlement agreement came out of
an allegation that Air Pegasus was diverting money
from the Midtown Heliport. There was a lawsuit by

HRPT. Ultimately the case was settled, but the
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fact that the settlement agreement says that there
is no violations of anything and that there was
cooperation just goes to show what we believe 1is
the extent of the political power of Air Pegasus.
That's number one.

Number two, we submit that the

proposals here were not done consistent with the

Development Corporation. In this regard, we
already filed a complaint in the United States
District Court, Southern District of New York.
That case is pending before Judge Sullivan.

In fact, and when we talked about due
diligence, we want due diligence. In fact, Linden
wants -- as I'm sure all of us want -- this
contract to be awarded to the most gqualified
company that gave the best proposal to the City of
New York.

In that regard, Mr. Dudley, at least

Economic Development Corporation, the documents
that were submitted on behalf of FirstFlight; and
it was either ignored or rejected.

Then, last week, on Friday, our firm

15

rules and regulations of the New York City Economic

five or six times, requested from the New York City
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went to court

16
8

on order to show cause for expedited

discovery. Don't take my word for it.

you the transcript of the hearing

court.

As

We will get

in the federal

a courtesy, I gave all of you a copy

of the complaint in federal court, the

attachment,

the order to show cause and the memorandum of law.

In fact, I sai

d to Judge Sullivan -- and this is in

the transcript -- we believe there has

irregularity here, and that the federal

should look at the underlying documents.

been an

court

And the

underlying documents are all in the order to show

cause.

I would submit that -- it 1is

pages, but those documents

only two

will be part of any due

diligence; and if you were to ignore those

documents -- and the Economic Development

Corporation, we believe, ignored those

documents --

then the court will decide and look at those

documents. Because that is public record and that

is something every public entity should have to

disclose in a

fair, open and bona fide

The judge in federal court,

to him, that if he were to look at the

situation.

I submitted

documents

Tankoos Reporting

516.741.5235

212.349.9692  888.242.DEPO(3376)
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submitted by Linden Municipal Airport Corporation,

17

and look at the documents submitted by FirstFlight,

that he would come to the conclusion that the
Economic Development Corporation had made a
mistake.

In his transcript he basically
suggested that it was premature to intercede at

this point, because there was going to be this

hearing before the Franchise Commission, and I hope

that he was right.

The judge indicated that clearly,
basically, I don't think he could make a decision
unless he looked at documents; but these are
arguments I could make to the Franchise Commission
and you will look at the documents.

I could go on and on. I do appreciate

14

giving me some latitude in my argument. Perhaps my

argument will alleviate some other speakers who
feel the process in this particular case has gone
off -- Just because it's a public company, I think
doesn't think means anything.

There is an article in Barron's that
came out today, and I'm involved in a public

company. I won't compare one to the other, but
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just because it's a public company doesn't mean
that somehow they're more important as a public
company.

It is a public company. It is not
NASDAQ; correct me 1f I'm wrong. It's not the
American Stock Exchange; correct me if I'm wrong.
I think it's either a bulletin board - - it's a
bulletin board stock. How they could consider that

an attribute --

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Sir, please wrap up.
MR. HANTMAN: I suggest you do your due
diligence. The documents are before you. We know

we have other opportunities to protest.
Ultimately, although we don't want to, ultimately a

federal judge or a state court will make a

decision. Unfortunately, now you have become part
of the process. We would hope with your due
diligence, your integrity and your common sense,

that this proposal, whoever it goes out to
eventually, will not be arbitrary and capricious.
That would be an insult to the City of New York.
Thank you.
THE CLERK: We have Paul Dudley on

behalf of Linden Airport. If you would like to
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address us?

MR. DUDLEY: Yes. Good afternoon. My
name 1s Paul Dudley. I would like to read this
into the record.

(Reading.)
"I serve as president of the Linden
Airport Management Corporation. In that capacity,

within the limited time provided, let me set forth
my opposition to any determination your agency
might make that would permit a fixed based
operation contract to the Downtown Manhattan
Heliport to be awarded to FirstFlight.

"By any fair review, Linden was the
bidder with both the highest and most responsible
bid. The action by the New York City EDC was

shrouded in secrecy, where I was precluded from

19

properly competing. I was not given the subsequent

chances others were provided to fully compete.

"The sole conclusion that I have 1is

that factors not appropriate to the bidding process

played heavily into the decision making process.
"I have enclosed a copy of the

complaint filed in United States District Court,

Southern District of New York, which I requested to
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be part of my testimony. It tells a chilling story
about political gamesmanship in the contract award,
a violation of the public trust, and gross abuse of
the bidding process.

"In the limited time I do have, let me
say that FirstFlight is not gualified as I am to
operate the Downtown Manhattan Heliport. It
appears that this is a hollow attempt to establish
credibility... reliance on the role of the Trank
family.

"This past experience with the 30th
Street Heliport from an operational and conflict of
interest perspective, should preclude FirstFlight
from even being considered.

"The New York Times recently referred
to the world of helicopter operators as 'insular.'
That may be true. What is definitely true 1is that
the selection process that brings us here today
permits FirstFlight, with virtually no experience,
to serve as a fixed-based operator; not the
operator of the airfield. A fixed base operator, a
tenant. For the Downtown Manhattan Heliport, it
will not serve the public interest.

"Our complaint also speaks to a second
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secret round of bidding that was calculated to
achieve an anticompetitive predetermined result.
We believe that the anticompetitive nature of the

process should preclude any action on your part to

help permit FirstFlight be awarded the contract fo
the heliport. We are more qualified.

"Our court action is, of course,
separate and apart from what brings us here. The

facts that are contained in the complaint are
relative to your deliberations.

"Any action that permits a novice such
as FirstFlight to operate a heliport, especially
with the irregularities -- and that's being polite
-- with a blatant conflict of interest present,

should be the reason to preclude this abuse of the

system."

That was my prepared statement. There'
one other thing to point out. It is okay to talk
about an FBO in the context of a fixed based
operator, in terms of someone who is a retail
person.

They are a person that has nothing to
do with the operation of the airfield. They don't

deal with all the things that the abrogation side

21

r

S
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requires. They are a tenant in the mall. Because
they own the shoe store, and they run a great shoe
store -- in this case they run, they sell fuel and
they do maintenance and they do charter -- has
absolutely nothing to do with the running of the
airfield. It has nothing to do with federal
inspections. It has nothing to do with abrogation
issues, sorting out things with tenants.

For the last 20 years I have run Linden

Municipal Airport. We don't compete with our
customers; we run the airport. Teterboro Airport
has six FBOs that compete for business. They have

one airport manager who runs the facility.

They operate FBOs where they service
their customers, and I'm sure they do a wonderful
job. They operate a charter business, which has
absolutely nothing to do with running an FBO.

In either case, as good as they may or
may not be, they are not as qualified as I am --
I'm sorry for the braggadocio -- they are not as
qualified as I am, in that they have not run the
entire airport. They are a tenant in the mall.
That does not qualify them to run the whole mall.

Thank you for your attention.
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THE CLERK: The next speaker is Terry

f, counsel from the New York City Law

Department. She'll be followed by John Kegstad.

MS. KRASNOFF: Good afternoon. I just
wanted to correct the record or make clear what the
record 1is regarding the status of the litigation
that's pending in the Southern District of New
York.

Mr. Hantman and I appeared before Judge

n on Thursday afternoon, at which time the

judge declined to sign the order to show cause

been presented to you by Mr. Hantman. He

refused to sign it.

He stayed litigation for a period of
and held, basically, that the case 1is
re at this juncture because no final
nation has been made. The concession has
n awarded. The concession has not been
red by the Comptroller.

We are to report back to the judge at

the end of this month as to the status of this

and the registration process. But right
lawsuit is stayed in its entirety. I

to let you know that.
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THE CLERK: The next person to testify
is John Kegstad on behalf of the Helicopter Flight
Services; followed by Michael Roth, of the New Yor

Helicopter Charter.

were operating briefly at 30th Street by the Trank

my understanding they are behind FirstFlight, whic
is obviously a great concern to us.

That is one of our major concerns.
Also, that he is a partner in Liberty Helicopters,
if they end up renting the Downtown Heliport, our
competition will be our landlord; which I would

think is a conflict of interest and very hard to

work with. That's our major concern.
Thanks.
THE CLERK: The next speaker is Michael

Roth on behalf of New York Helicopter Charter.

24

k

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Quickly, please.
MR. KEGSTAD: I'm from Helicopter Flight
Services, general partner. We've been a flight
operator in New York since 1983. We've been tenant
downtown since 2003.
Going back a little bit, we had an
interim... closed. Before we got into downtown, we

family, which they tried to... kicked out, and it's

h
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MR. ROTH: My name is Michael Roth. I'm
the president of New York Helicopter Charter,
Incorporated. We operate since 2004 the Downtown
Manhattan Heliport.

As far as the Trank's, one of the
partners and the APH, I've been discriminated
against the APH now for 4 years. I'm part of three

lawsuits, and right now a federal lawsuit in front
of Judge Cederbaum.

I've been denied access to that
heliport from time to time and limited when I could
go in there, and it is a public heliport.

Last year, due to the fact that I
complained to the HRB about wrongdoing and what was
going on in the heliport, they threw me out and
wouldn't let me operate out of there. The only
place that I operate out of is the Downtown Wall
Street Heliport which... i1s the manager there.

We have a great sightseeing company.
After September 11 when we were burying our company
in the ground, I wanted to go back and see if I
could revive this company. March 2004 I went to
Alvin Trank at the West 30th Street Heliport. I

operated there for two months and then they told me
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to get out.

They made up all sorts of excuses, lies

nasty lawsuits which I couldn't afford to fight.
So I had to go and submit to their rules, which was
twice a week and $12,000 a month in fees. They had
one of their friends in there, Zip Aviation, paying
$500 a month for unlimited landings, and so forth.

When I complained to HRP and told them
about my customers being stolen and I was being
stolen from and I was discriminated against on a
day to day basis, and refused the right to land and
get fuel and so forth, they basically shut me out
and said, "You can't land anymore."

We went into state court where they
said to me, the judge said to me, "If you drop your
lawsuit we'll let you back in." I refused to drop
my lawsuit and I'm in front of Judge Cederbaum
right now and she's had it for a year. I think we
will be heading to conclusion soon.

The heliport has been running for
27 years with no bid, no RFP. I'm sure there's a
lot of back influence, but let me give you a little
background.

I was a vendor for the City, for the

142 Willis Avenue

TankOOS Reportlng Mineola, NY 11501

305 Madison Avenue
516.741.5235  212.349.9692 888.242.DEPO(3376) New York, NY 10165

Toll Free Fax: 800.337.6769
www.tankoos.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

FCRC June 2, 2008

277
FCRC Public Hearing - 6/2/08
Sheriff, for 20 years. I worked for seven
commissioners. I worked for three mayors. I have
an exemplary record. For someone like Alvin Trank

and HPR and the partners FirstFlight to
discriminate -- I'm not the only one, there are
many more. Please take that into consideration.

I basically right now do have a federal
lawsuit and I want to provide you with any
information you would like.

Thank you very much for listening.

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Is there anyone else
who wishes to speak?

MR. HANTMAN: Any gquestions of me or any
of the other speakers? Even the president of
FirstFlight? We should have an open dialog. I
notice a lot of you aren't taking notes, but I'm
sure you will read all the papers.

If you have any questions, why don't we
just talk about it now? This 1is the best place.
Everybody is here.

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Does anyone wish to
speak?

MS. BUDZIK: I don't know whether anyone

from EDC wants to respond to any of the statements?
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CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Thank you, sir.

The hearing is closed.
Moving on to the third calendar item.
Clerk, if you would read that?

THE CLERK: New York City Department of
Transportation. In the matter of the intent to
seek Franchise and Concession Review Committee
approval to extend the operating authority of
Private Transportation Corporation, to provide bus
service in the Borough of Brooklyn between
Williamsburg and Borough Park.

The term of the extension is from
July 1,2008 until June 30, 2009.

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Does anyone wish to
testify?

Is the agency here?

Will the Clerk recall that calendar
item?

THE CLERK: New York City Department of
Transportation, Calendar Item 3: In the matter of
the intent to seek Franchise and Concession Review
Committee approval to extend the operating
authority of Private Transportation Corporation, to

provide bus service in the Borough of Brooklyn
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between Williamsburg and Borough Park.

The term of the extension is from
July 1,2008 until June 30, 2009.

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Does anyone wish to
testify?

If no one wishes to speak, the hearing
is closed.
Will the Clerk call the next item?

THE CLERK: New York City Department of
Transportation, Calendar Item 4: In the matter of
the intent to seek Franchise and Concession Review
Committee approval to extend the operating
authority of Private One of New York, LLC, for the
maintenance and operation of omnibuses between the
Borough of Manhattan and LaGuardia and JFK Airports
in the Borough of Queens and between those
airports.

The term of the extension is from
July 1, 2008 until June 30, 2009.

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Does anyone wish to
speak on this matter?

MR. HEALEY: My name 1s Kevin Healey.

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Please fill out the

form by the Clerk.
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Does anyone else wish to make a
Statement?

THE CLERK: Next to testify is Kevin
Healy on behalf of SRI.

MR. HEALEY: My name is Kevin Healey,

and I'm here on behalf of SRI, which is the owner
of 125 Park Avenue.

I have some comments printed out. Can

I hand them out?
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summarize.

the west;

Schwartz

(Mr. Healey handed out documents.)
I won't read them, but if I could

SRI strongly objects to this franchise.

reason that i1t does so is primarily because

stop is in the wrong location.

The bus stop is between 41st and 42nd

Street on the east side of Park Avenue. You will
remember that block is the block with a viaduct on
and it has got two subway entrances and
five different retail entrances. It's a very busy

block with pedestrian traffic.

The people at SRI have engaged Sam

study what the problems are there.

What Schwartz has come back with is, because this

busy as it i1s and because there is a
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lot of background pedestrian traffic, there are
problems already.

With the bus stop there, those problems
are exacerbated; and they are exacerbated
particularly because the way this bus stop operates
is, for whatever reason, there 1s a permanent
parked ticketing truck parked on the curb side.

And people come and buy their tickets. They have a
lot of luggage. And then after they buy their
tickets, they go and loiter around the sidewalk and
block the entrance to the subway and retail area.

Because of the fact that there 1is
background pedestrian traffic and there are these
people waiting around, there is a lot of pedestrian
congestion.

There's also a lot of traffic
congestion in this area because, primarily, this
ticketing truck 1is parked there permanently. And
it is parked in a way that buses, when they come
in, have go around it and go around it when going
out 1it. So there are lanes of traffic that are
blocked, and as a result a good deal of traffic
congestion.

So there are these operational problems
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because of the location of the bus stop and also
because of the way the bus stop operates with the
ticketing truck there, and with the buses there
along the curb lane.

Under the franchise, the buses are
supposed to be there only for the expeditious
discharge and taking on of passengers. What has
happened, and I'm not sure why, they will have to
explain it to you -- the buses come in and lay over
for extensive periods of time; and as a result,
there are these problems.

So the franchise, the way it exists
now, 1s being violated we believe because of the
lay over of the buses. The franchise is also being
violated by the very presence of that ticketing
truck. This franchise is only supposed to be for
the discharge of passengers and the picking up of
passengers.

Specifically, it talks about it not
being a place to lay over the buses. This
ticketing truck is essentially a permanent fixture.
Not only that, it is there in a way where there 1is
an engine that is on 100 percent of the time, as

far as we can tell.
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My client's building is adjacent to the
bus stop. What my client observed on a daily basis
is that the engine in the ticket truck 1is,
essentially, permanently on.

Not only that, but the buses that lay
over are also on. There's a provision in the
franchise, as you know, in city law, that says
specifically that vehicles are not supposed to idle
more than three minutes. That's not happening.

And it isn't just an enforcement
problem. It is a pervasive and permanent operating
condition of this bus stop. Of course, the Police

Department has other things to do so it isn't doing

anything.

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Please wrap up.

MR. HEALEY: We think the bus stop
should be moved. The Schwartz report indicates it

could be moved and it would be better in other
locations. And if the city decides to renew the
franchise or not renew the franchise, at least
understand the burden that's being placed on the
adjacent landowner.

I ask, and my client asks that you

impose certain conditions on the new franchise, and
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1: Have an individual there who 1is

responsible for crow control; who will monitor the

situation and make sure people gueue up 1in an

orderly fashion and not strew luggage all over the

sidewalk.

2 Remove the ticketing truck. This 1is
a bus stop. It's not supposed to be a place where
there's a permanently parked vehicle that sells
tickets.

3: Cease and desist from idling
vehicles for more than three minutes. Make sure

the buses don't idle for more than three minutes,

and make sure the ticketing truck doesn't
more than three minutes.

Make sure that the bus stop is

idle for

only

used for the discharge of passengers and the taking

on of passengers. Make sure the trash 1is

cleaned

up . The place 1is a mess. People litter and the

bus stop operator doesn't, as far as we know, do

anything to pick up the trash left behind.

Finally, if you could have some way to

enforce these things, it would be very important.

If you could bond it and make sure that the
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franchise depends upon it. This 1is something we
have spoken to NYAS about and spoken to others
about it. Nothing is being done. We appreciate

it.

that is going to come on for a vote in the near
future. If you could delay the vote and sit down
with the Department of Transportation and with the
applicant, see whether these things can be worked
out, see whether provisions could be put into the
franchise.

CHATRPERSON KOCH: Thank you.

Does anybody else wish to speak?

THE CLERK: Michael Booker on behalf of
Private Transportation.

MR. BOOKER: I'm Michael Booker, genera
manager of Private Transportation.

I respectfully disagree with what the
gentleman says. We abide by all laws and are
willing to sit down with the client and the
building manager and work out any problems with th
Department of Transportation.

Mark... the president isn't here. I'm

representing him. He's on the West Coast for an

35

Also, we would appreciate, we understand

1

e
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Apollo meeting. We will be glad to sit down for
the sake of the transportation there and the
services you provide, and work out any 1issues

operationally with the building owner.

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Thank you.
MR. CASTELLANETE: To clarify, there
was a question. It's my understanding that this

coming Wednesday, June 4, SCRC will meet at 2:30 to
vote on this franchise. You raised the question
about the vote in the nearby future. Again, 1it's
my understanding that the vote will be on
Wednesday, June 4.

MR. HEALEY: We're asking to defer the
vote because, notwithstanding the fact of the
applicant saying they are willing to sit down with
us, we have sat down with them before, with their
representative, in February. There's been no
change in the operation since that time.

We feel that what has to happen, things
have to be worked out, Number 1. And Number 2,
there has to be some teeth to what's worked out, so
that whatever is worked out has to appear in the
franchise. If the vote 1s not deferred, then we

are not going to be able to do that.
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Unless we meet over the next day or so,
but the president is unavailable for a week.
Although my client would be very willing to sit
down today or tomorrow, my understanding is that
the president of the company 1s not available. So
we regqguest there be a deferral for a very short
reasonable period of time to provide the

opportunity to sit down.

MS. BUDZIK: Did you sit down with DOT?

MR. HEALEY: Yes. We sat down with the
Borough Commissioner of DOT. It was a good
meeting. She was very cooperative. She

acknowledged the factual dispute raised here, that
there are problems; that the idling laws have been
disregarded. And that there are other complaints
that have been made.

She is certainly willing to help us.
She is certainly willing to arrange a meeting with
the corporation, with someone who has authority in
the corporation. Apparently the person who told us
he could work things out didn't have the authority
to do so earlier.

I'm hopeful we will be able to do it;

but my past experience makes me wonder. Again, we
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franchise, so there's time to do that.
CHAIRPERSON KOCH: I believe DOT would
like to make a statement?

MS. KOENIG: Yes. I'm Ann Koenig,

Consents at DOT; and as I know you are aware, what
we are requesting is a one-year extension of these
operating authorities, two franchises, in order to
give us time to finalize requests for proposals an
to choose a successor franchise. And that 1is, of
course, contingent on the City Council allowing us
to extend for another year.

A public hearing was held this morning
and we have every expectation that will happen.
Without that authorization and your vote to extend
the operating authority, the franchise expires
June 30 and will not be able to continue providing
service to the public.

We are, at DOT, very interested in
working with both Private One and Mr. Healey and
his client and sitting down and working out some o

these operational issues. They are operational

38
FCRC Public Hearing - 6/2/08
would do it today, we would do 1t tomorrow. We
really think that whatever is worked out... for the

Executive Director of Franchise and Concessions and

d

4

f
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issues. I think they can be resolved if we work
together. You notice we started that conversation
offline in the lobby here.

DOT has looked at this question of
moving the bus stop. We're satisfied with the
location as it is. What we're really talking about
is variance, quality of 1life, sidewalk issues that

have to do with the procedure of having passengers
load on to the bus; get their luggage, get their
tickets and having the bus move off. And we look
forward to working with both parties to resolve
those on an operational level.

MS. BUDZIK: Is DOT optimistic about
having something before Wednesday?

MS. KOENIG: No. As I think Mr. Healey
said, we'd like to involve the president of the
company about this. I got a formal letter from Mr.
Healey this morning that the president of the
company was out of town this week at a business
conference.

I definitely think things can be worked
out. They are, as I said, operational and
enforcement related. And the extent to which the

franchise contract relates to that, it 1is a
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question of our getting an operational agreement
with the company that assures compliance. I'm not
sure it affects the actual franchise.
MR. CASTELLANETE: Ms. Koenig, there 1is
an allegation of the idling issue. It's a serious

concern to all New Yorkers. It's an allegation.
We don't know if it's fact or not.

May we suggest someone from DOT go out
and do some spot checks; and i1f the allegation 1is
correct, then take whatever steps are necessary.
If they are not correct, let us know, also, that
the idling is not an issue.

MS. KOENIG: Mr. Healey met with the
borough commissioner, as he mentioned, and the

client, as well?

MR. HEALEY: Yes.
MS. KOENIG: And we're working with the
Police Department to check on -- because 1if they

are in fact idling beyond the three minutes, that's
a violation and the Police Department is in a
position to enforce that.

MR. CASTELLANETE: Thank you.

MS. BUDZIK: To be clear for the record,

although testimony was submitted this morning to
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you and to us with today's date, there was a letter
to the commissioner dated February. So DOT has
been aware for a longer period of time.

MS. KOENIG: The main issue 1in this
letter, the question of moving the bus stop, was
addressed in the meeting with the borough
commissioner. The fact that Mr. Healey and his
client feel that these issues hadn't been
adequately addressed, we had a conversation last
week about this.

MR. HEALEY: We did include in that
first letter the operational issues, as well. And
I'm not sure that you had a copy of that letter.
But we did, and both these issues have been on our
mind for years, actually. They were brought to the
attention of the DOT.

What we are asking for, other than the
relocation of the bus stop, 1s nothing very
complicated. If you look at the last page of the
letter I handed out, we're asking that a person who
is responsible for crowd control be there, who's
doing his or her Jjob, controlling the crowd any
time the place is operational.

We are asking for other items that are
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required. If it's an illegally placed ticketing
truck, that it be removed; that the buses don't
idle more than three minutes; the ticketing truck
be not idling more than three minutes.

These are not difficult things. It's
not complicated or controversial. The place is not

operating well now, and the question is whether you

folks could defer voting and sit down and negotiate

something that we hope and imagine would be almost
exactly what's in here now.

Or, 1if you can't do that for whatever

reason, please put these conditions in the renewal.

Make sure they are in there in a way that's
enforceable. It's a violation of city law to idle
these buses for more than three minutes. But gues

what? The buses --

MR. BOOKER: I respectfully disagree.
CHAIRPERSON KOCH: We're out of time.
MS. BUDZIK: Can DOT talk to the issue

of the advance?

MS. KOENIG: The franchise they are
actively seeking is retail space to sell tickets,
but they do not have a retail location as of yet.

It did at one time have a location in the building

S
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owned by Mr. Healey's clients, but that location 1is

no longer available to them. It is a stopgap.

MR. YAN: Currently, tickets are being
sold out of a truck parked on the side of the
Street?

MS. BUDZIK: It probably runs all the
time?

MR. BOOKER: No. It has a generator and
does not run all the time. The truck engine which
runs the truck does not run all the time, which
moves the truck; absolutely not. We are, as I
said, we are not in the habit -- we don't want to

break the idling laws.
We also work out of LaGuardia

airports. Our buses pull in, pick people

and JFK

up and we

want them out. We have the mobile ticketing booth

there in order to get the tickets for the

passengers. They have the tickets, they get on the

bus and they are gone.

We're willing to work out any

operational issues to make it work better.

We're

absolutely willing to do that; that are accurate

and can be addressed in the proper manner.

MR. HEALEY: There's no provision
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whatsoever in the franchise that would allow this
ticket truck to be there. It is not there legally.

MR. YAN: Regarding your request for the
bus stop, for the location to be changed, your
first preference is 41st Street, I think. I don't
know whether that's appropriate or not.

Is that an option that could be
considered at this point?

MS. KOENIG: DOT has looked at the
option and we like the bus stop where it is now.
That's DOT's position, that's where it belongs.
That's our prerogative.

MR. HEALEY: We think the best solution
is to go elsewhere. It is not an... There are
better places for it; because this sidewalk is a
very busy sidewalk, next to Grand Central. There
are seven different entrances and access areas
along this space.

MR. YAN: Can you elaborate a little Dbit
on the possible resolutions in terms of
enforcement, in case there is idling going on?
Talks with the Police Department?

MR. ESPOSITO: I'm from the Counselor's

Office of the Department of Transportation.
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We are currently in the boroughs meeting

with the Police Department. They will have to
enforce the idling laws. We don't have an
enforcement function. We will assist them, we will

meet with them, but we don't issue violations
ourselves.

If there is idling in violation of city
law, we will be more than happy to enforce that.

MR. HEALEY: I respect what Counsel
says, but I know for a fact, because the Police
Department has told my client this, that they have
other things they have got to do before they can
enforce idling laws. It's just not at the top of
the Police Department's list.

In the best of faith -- I know what you
said -- as a practical matter, as years go by, as
months go by, I can guarantee you it is not going
to happen. It's just not going to happen. And so,
I request that it be in the franchise.

THE SPEAKER: It already 1is.

MR. HEALEY: Then I would request there
be some penalty for failing to do it; like a bond
be posted or have it clear that the franchise 1is

extinguished if there are violations of these
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provisions.

MR. ESPOSITO: The franchise currently
requires the franchise operator to abide with city
laws, including idling laws. The specific
provision that you pointed out in your letter that
they're supposed to comply with for the franchise.

I don't know what else we could put
into the agreement to make 1t more conspicuous. It
is already there in black and white. We can work
with the Police Department and we will work with
the Police Department and your client.

We'll be happy to meet with you and the
alrport service, as well as with Police Department
to resolve the issues.

MR. YAN: To the extent it's provided
assurance, I know the police have taken a strict
approach to bus idling in other neighborhoods and
they have regarded that as worth their time in some
other neighborhoods. I think this is one of the
most important issues with this matter. Can EDC
look assertively with NYPD to make some arrangement
to make sure there is no unlawful idling?

MR. ESPOSITO: I'm currently working on

a task force to resolve the idling problem
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throughout the city, throughout Manhattan,

it with the task force.

reason that they would want that to happen

following that.

something to pursue.

MS. BUDZIK: Are there special

47

with a

particular emphasis on Chinatown; and I will raise

MS. KOENIG: It's not in anyone's
interest to have bus idling. It's not in Mr.
Healey's client's interest or anyone from the bus
company either, because it is a waste of fuel and

in the current economy, I don't think there's any

unnecessarily. The drivers and staff should be

MR. HEALEY: It's a guestion of
housekeeping. The one individual who wants the
engine on is the driver. It may be heat or --

THE SPEAKER: It is the law.

MR. HEALEY: It continues to happen. I
guess one thought I have, i1if the franchise would

require that the franchisee enter in a binding
contract with my client and DOT that has these
housekeeping items in it within a certain period of
time; or again, you could defer the vote until

we're able to work such a thing out, that would be
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requirements in the agreement for maintaining the
area, such as litter baskets being emptied on a
regular basis, and sweeping up?
MS. KOENIG: I don't believe so. It's a
public sidewalk. It's city property, DOT property.

We don't believe there's anything specifically from

the franchise on that.

MR. ESPOSITO: It's just like any other
bus stop. People are waiting. Usually there's a
bus stop shelter. Maybe we could reach out to
Sanitation to install a can or something. I'm not
sure. I'm not aware of it. I haven't been there.

Again, that could be part of the
meeting with the bus company and yourself to work
out operational issues. Again, I don't think this
is something the franchise should cover.

We don't get into the business of
micromanaging franchisees with regard to locations.
This i1is not the only location that this bus stops
at. If we were to get involved with entering into
a contract with special size agreements for every
location the bus were to stop at, it would be a
never-ending proposition.

MS. KOENIG: It's also not the only bus
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company that stops on New York City streets. As
far as these two franchisees, there are companies
operating under state and federal authority that
operate within the city and that have designated
stops.

As far as I know, none are required to

clean sidewalks.

MR. HEALEY: Let's be clear about what
this bus stop is. It is a bus stop with two major
alrports. It has a shuttle bus operation operating

back and forth between hotels and this location.
It is a transportation hub, Grand Central and the
subways.

People come to this and are shuttled to
this location, this center, by your company, 1in

order to get to airports with a lot of luggage.

This is not your run of the mill bus stop. It's a
much different thing. This is a center for
transportation from hotels to airports. It's a

much different animal.

MR. COVINO: The Grand Central BID,
don't they provide clean-up services on the
sidewalk?

MR. HEALEY: My understanding is that
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the BID is a wonderfu

provide limited servi
someone
because of the crowd
their luggage.

They get
leave
can't ask the BID to
responsibility of the

MR.

around that location?

assigned to this

litter behind them qguite

COVINO:

MR. HEALEY:
that.

MS. KOENIG:
and see whether --

MR. COVINO:
of the BID?

MR. BATTLE:

MR. ESPOSI
would be, because the

THE SPEAKE
there.

MR. COVINO:
maybe identify BID members
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1l organization and does

ces. I guess they don't have
block. Again, this 1is
that waits for the buses with

something to eat and they

routinely. And we

do this. It should be the

operator.
Are there BID members
I don't know the

answer to

We can reach out to the BID

Is the franchise a member
I don't think so.
TO: I don't believe they
y don't have office space.
R: They don't own property

I would guess 1f there are,

at that location and see
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if they as members can raise the issue of
maintaining the trash situation a little bit more.

MS. BUDZIK: Your client would be a
member of the BID?

MR. HEALEY: I assume so; don't know for
a fact.

MR. POY: Within the franchise
agreement, 1is there a schedule for service from
this location?

MR. HEALEY: No. A particularly
schedule in terms of the buses?

MR. POY: A 12:00 bus, a 4:00 bus?>

MR. HEALEY: No.

MR. BOOKER: We have a schedule run
every 20 minutes to and from LaGuardia and JFK
airports. We want to be on time. We want the
buses to move on time. We do have a schedule and
it's on the website.

MR. POY: It's not parts of the
franchise?

MS. KOENIG: It's on file with DOT. If

it's changed more than a certain amount, 1t's

subject to approval. They can adjust it within

certain parameters, merely with the DOT approval.
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If they make big changes to the schedule, it 1is
subject to your approval.
MR. POY: Regarding the ticketing wvan, I

assume that's for people in the Manhattan area who
are going to the airports.

Is there any capability for online
ticketing?

MR. BOOKER: We have online ticketing.
The stop's been there for many years. People come
from Grand Central, they come right to the express
bus service that we have, that we're very proud of.
It's on time. They come and buy ticket their
ticket and they're on the Dbus.

A lot of people are not online and a
lot of passengers aren't so happy with going online

to buy tickets.

MR. POY: What's the size of the
vehicle?

MR. BOOKER: It's a bread truck, kind
of.

MR. YAN: There are both sides to the

issue, and the franchise 1s getting expired at the
end of June, and these issues brought up by SRI are

important issues.
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Is it possible for DOT to offer some
ne for progress on discussions or resolutions
s°7?
MS. KOENIG: We would like to resolve
s soon as possible. One of the reasons that
k it's really a good time to work on the
is that there's every likelihood that the
ranchise will utilize the same stop. And we

like that franchise to start on the right

I would like to sit down with these two
men and the principals within the next couple
ks.

MR. HEALEY: That's an important thing
he just said. If there's a new franchise, it
certainly be a wonderful thing, an important

to embed in that franchise whatever can be
out satisfactory in this circumstance to get
the right foot.

In terms of the franchise expiring, it
to me that there are a couple of ways to
cat. Today 1s June 2nd; it expires June 30.

t know how frequently the committee meets --

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: July.
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MR. HEALEY: Now I do. And I don't know
whether there is the opportunity for a special
meeting.
MS. KOENIG: It 1is expensive.
MR. HEALEY: By telephone, i1if this could

be worked out? I don't know whether the franchise
could be renewed for a month, with the
understanding that during that month the parties
try to work something out. Assuming things are
worked out, continue for the next 11 months.

There are many things I assume that
could be done in order to deal with this problem.
Again, I'm pushing it because, as was said a couple
of times here, the franchise has, for example, the
anti-idling provision; but it is not enforced. It
is sitting there. It's words on paper. We've got
to figure out a way to get some teeth into this.

Again, that's my request.

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Thank you.
MR. YAN: We received full information
about it this morning. It seems especially, even

if the franchise lasts only a year, it seems
important to initiate and conclude discussions

quickly so things are not resolved halfway through
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the franchise.

on DOT, but seems it could be useful to have some
concrete ideas for a timeline for the next meeting

on Wednesday.

matter of a public hearing on Agency concession
plans pursuant to Section 1-10 of the Concession
Rules of the City of New York.

At this hearing, the FCRC shall furthe
solicit comments about the provisions of the
Concession Rules from the vendor community, civic
groups and the public at large.

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: As I mentioned

previously, as part of today's public hearing

55

I ask, not intending to impose too much

MS. KOENIG: Fine.

MR. YAN: Thank you.

CHATITRPERSON KOCH: Anything else on this
issue?

This hearing is closed. Thank you all

for your comments.

Will the Clerk read the next calendar
item?

THE CLERK: The New York City Mayor's
Office of Contract Services, Item Number 5: In the

r
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agenda, this committee will also solicit comments
from the vendor community, civic groups and the
public at large concerning the Agency's annual
plans, Section 1-10 of the Concession Rules of the
City of New York.

Anyone wish to testify?

56

MS. QUINTAIN: I would like to make one

statement for the record, on behalf of the Mayor's

Office of Contract Services.

I believe that the members of FCRC know

we sent information to the members. We did write
to each of the community boards to alert them to
the annual plans, and to the opportunity that they
had at their board meeting to ask the Parks

Department and the other agencies covered by the

plans to come in locally and do presentations about

the plan for the upcoming fiscal year, as well as
for all the concessions.

We have had a number of conversations
with community boards to make sure they are aware
of their opportunity to do that

CHAIRPERSON KOCH: Any guestions about
the concession rules?

Comments, anything?
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If no one else wishes to speak,

concludes the calendar for today.
We are adjourned.

(Time noted: 3:45 p.m.)
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